" MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST ADDENDUM SHEET Property Name: Good Hope United Methodist
INTERCOUNTY CONNECTOR PROJECT Church and Cemetery
Survey No.:M:28-31 (PACS E11.31)

Property Address_14655 Good Hope Road, Colesville, Montgomery County, Maryland
~~ || Owner Name/Address_Good Hope Parsonage and Church, 14655 Good Hope Road, Silver Spring, MD 20905
Year Buiit_Cemetery circa 1880, Church 1913

Description:

The Good Hope United Methodist Church and Cemetery, constructed in 1913 and circa 1880, respectively, was previously
surveyed by the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission in May 1994. The property has not been altered
since the previous survey.

National Register Evaluation:

The Good Hope United Methodist Church and Cemetery, constructed in 1913, is eligible for the National Register of Historic
Places. The property is eligible under Criterion A, for its association with the African-American village of Good Hope, which
flourished during the late 19th and early 20th centuries. In addition, the cemetery meets Criterion Consideration D, under
' Criterion C for its folk-art stone carving and retains its integrity of design. The period of significance for the property extends
\$¢57’ from 1848 to 1947. Historic research indicates that the property has no association with persons who have made specific
contributions to history, and therefore, it does not meet Criterion B. Finally the property has no known potential to yield
important information, and therefore, does not meet Criterion D.

Verbal Boundary Description and Justification:

The National Register boundary of the Good Hope United Methodist Church and Cemetery follow the current property lines
- of 14655 Good Hope Road (Tax Map JR 563, Parcel 244). This 1.21 hectare (3 acre) parcel is bounded on three sides by
adjacent tax parcels, and on the northwest by Good Hope Road. The boundary includes the cemetery, which contributes
to the significance of the property, and the church. While the cemetery contributes to the significance of the property, the
church does not, due to significant alterations which have resulted in the loss of the structure’s architectural integrity.

MHT CONCURRENCE:

Eligibility __recommended 5 not recommended

Criteria A B C Considerations A B C D E F G None
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We concur with the determination of Not Eligible. This
property includes a representative example of a two-
story, three-bay dwelling type which was common for
the period and is well represented.

We concur with the determination of Not Eligible.

We concur with the determination of Not Eligible.

We concur with the determination of Not Eligible.

We concur that Amersley is eligible for listing on the
National Register under Criterion C and we concur with

the boundaries as presented in the addendum forms.

We concur with the determination of Not Eligible.

We concur with the determination of Not Eligible.

The church, originally built in 1913 was altered beyond
recognition in the 1980s and no longer retains sufficient
architectural integrity to qualify under Criteria A or C.
Further, on its own, the Good Hope Methodist Church
Cemetery does not qualify for individual listing under
Criterion Consideration D of the National Register
because the cemetery does not contain the graves of

M:27-12 _ John R. Champayne House Not Eligible
M:23-117 _ Flint Hill 1 Not Eligible
M:28-18 _Edward Hill House Not Eligible
M:28-24  / John Leizer Farmhouse Not Eligible
M:23-118 | Amersley Eligible
M:28-30  J Richard Leishear House Not Eligible
M:28-31 / Good Hope Methodist Not Eligible
Episcopal Church and Cemetery
5, AR5 0N oo v
Not Eligible

M:34-9

J st Mark's/Paint Chapel

persons considered to be of

We concur with the determi
determination is bas
urch building was
(s:?nould be noted in the addendum form.
SHA that the form s
church was built in
(now demolished).
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destroyed by fire I 1987, ttus
We agree with
hould include a note that a new
1980 behind the original church
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suggest its function as tha mill operator's residence; despite several minor changes to the . -
front porch. relocation of the side chimney, and the glazing of a rear porch, the house Z -2/
clearly retlects @ 19th century identity. Little effort has been made to identify the mill Letter
operators and verify their associations with the Shaw House or to eveluate the house 8nd £ o4 NS
its immediate surroundings in the context of the historic operations of a 19th century mill. 4o~ 7

The undisturbed topography and rural landscape defining the formel mill site and the 2/C¢/os
presence of several outbuildings, the mill ruins, the creek, manmade terraces, and natural

springs, warrant an evaluation of the entire mill property under criterion A 8s 8 rural

property significantly associated with the industrial and agricultural heritage of

Montgomery County. The tack of historical documentation to understand this site,

furthermore, suggests that archeological evaluation may indicate eligibility under criterion D

for the potential to yiald important information in historic archeology about 19th century

grist and saw-milling operations in outer Montgomery County.

Additional information is needed to understand both the archeological importance of the
mill ruins, the historical evolution of what appears 10 be the miller’s house and its
surroundings, and the relationship between the two sites. You may wish to consult
Nastional Register bulletins on rural historic landscapes and historic archeological properties.
Please provide information about the history of the mill and millers who operated it. 10
what ways is this site similar of dissimitar to other milt and mill sites of the period in
Montgomery County? How many similar mills served the area and are extent today? What
does this place te!l us about the area’s 19th century agricultural and industrial history?

Please relate the historical facts 10 the physica! evidence provided 1) in tha construction
and design of the miller's house, and 2.) the overall site, including built features,
archeological remains, and landscape features. Please date and describe the function and
condition of ruins once associated with the operation of the mill. Please consult and
summarize the findings of the previous archeological investigation and relate it to the
existing conditions. Provide a list of research questions through which turther study of the
overall site would likely provide important information about the operation of Muncaster
Mill and about 19th and early 20th century milling practices.

Please provide 8 sketch map of the Nathan Shaw property and the larger property that
historically operated as 3 mitt, identifying: 1) the historical poundaries of the mill, 2) natural
features such as springs. creek, and secondary streams (hat were part of the historic
getting and/or operation of the mill, and 3.) the remains of historic structures §uch as mills,
dars, canals, etC. 4.) remaining historic buildings., outbuildings, and terraces. Please
provide one or more photographs of the mill ruins and overa!! eotting of the former mill site.

I i { Church an metery.

This property consists of 8 substantially altered church puilding that does not possess
historic integrity for Nationa! Register listing and a cemetery dating to the late 19th century
that may possess significant characteristics of design and association. The property '
appears to be associated with the history of the African-Amarican community of Good
Hope and reflects an irragular arrangement ot gravesites and tradition of hand-carved grave
markers charactaristic of rural African-American settlements in the region. The SHPO has
requested that further contextual research be conducted to verify the Nationel Register
eligibility of such historic properties as the Good Hope end Round Osk Church Cemeteries.
Please provide an explanstion of the ways in which the cemetery and grounds of the Good
Hope Church reflect historic patterns of design associatod with the African-American
heritage of Montgomery County. Plasse describe the characteristics typical of pfrican
Americen cemeteries in the region and show how they are reflected in the Good Hope
cemetery. Please explain the evolution of cemeterias of this type and the history of a folk



tradition of hand-carved grave markers that appeared at Good Hope over a broad span of
years. Explain how the Good Hope Cemetery reflects past and continuing cultural and
religious traditions and other aspects of socio-cultural life that is associated with the
region’s African-American communities. Please explain the extent to which this cematery
reflects significant aspects of Montgomery County’s history and development not tangible
in other kinds of historic resources. Note what other resource types are prasent in
Montgomery County to reflect associations with the county’s several African-American
communities. Note what other properties survive intact with historical associations to the
Good Hope community. Pleass briefly describe the history of the Good Hope community,
noting its contributions to the overall growth and development of Montgomery County:.

Wm. Kisner Property: Please provide the SHPO opinion based on the revised form and
comments of the Maryland National Capital Park and Planning Commission,

Columbia Primitive Baptist Church: Please provide a description of the interior of the

church, noting the original condition and dating and describing any changes. What
changes ware made to the interior when the rear addition was added to the proparty?

Andrew Buskirk House: Please reassess the significance of this property under National
Register criteria A and B. Ploass provide information about the persons (including members

of the Stabler family) associated with this homs and their role in local or regional activities
or affairs. Please verify that the architectural description is accurate.

Bridge M56: Plaase verify and expand the information on the form. The form gives a ca.
1925 date, but compares it to a 1830 standardized plan. Pleass identify the standardized
plan by title, date, etc. and indicate the specific conditions that called for the construction
of this type of bridge. What factors led to the selection of the site for the bridge and the
choice of the design? What was the principal route served by the bridge? Were public
works moneay available through the New Deal (e.g. Public Works Administration, Civil
Works Administration, Works Progress Administration) used for the construction of this
bridge?

aurel

Please expand upon the history of the sand and gravel operation and its role in the
industrial heritage of Prince George’s county. Please provide more specific dates for the
main building and associated outbuildings. Please provide chronology for the site 25 a
whole dating from the 1920s when extractive inustries began on this site to ths recent
period when reclamation afforts have taken placa.

Piease examine the site as an industria! historic district that may include butldings, sheds,
structures for grading and processing, storage, depots, culverts, roads, extraction facilities,
sites/mines. Pleass identify historic and non-historic features that make up the industrial
landscaps today. Explain the relationship of the Gould property to the operations of the
sand and gravel company? Was housing accommodated on site historically? To what
extont is such housing extant today?

Please describe, and provide dstes for the principal engineering structures that make up the
sand and gravel processing operations. Please identify the extent to which the current
core to the processing operations and structures reflect the procass in the 1940s. When
did mining operations begin on this site?

Please define any significance locally and regionally in industry, transportation (A, as
events} and/or engineering (C, as a type for structures and process). What was the
relstionship of the site’s production of sand and gravel to the growth and development of
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MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST ADDENDUM SHEET Property Name: Good Hope United Methodist
INTERCOUNTY CONNECTOR PROJECT Church and Cemetery

Survey No.: M:28-31 (PACS E11.31)

Property Address_14655 Good Hope Road, Colesville, Montgomery County, Maryland

Owner Name/Address Good Hope Parsonage and Church, 14655 Good Hope Road, Silver Spring, MD 20905

Year Built Cemetery circa 1880, Church 1913

Resource Sketch Map and National Register Boundary Map:

National Register Boundary ||’
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Upgrade Existing Roads Alternative

Quad_ Beltsville

Survey No.__M:28-31 (PACS El1.31)
Property Name_Good Hope United
Methodist Church and Cemetery
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CAPSULE SUMMARY

FOR
Good Hope Union United (GOOD HOPE ME)CHURCH AND CEMETERY
Methodist
14655 GOOD HOPE ROAD, CLOVERLY
Montgomery County Survey Prefix & Site Number: M-28/31
Approximate Building Date: church - circa 1913, altered 1960s
cemetery - 1880s to 1980s
Town or Vicinity in which Resource is Located: Cloverly

Access: Private

The renovated church faces Good Hope Road and is a most
prominent feature on the site. The cemetery has an irregular
P layout that surrounds most of the church’s rear and west
elevation with plots that have a variety of historic and non-
historic gravsmarkers generally dating from the 1880s to the
1980s. The Good Hope Church and Cemetery are important for their
historical associations with -the black settlement of northeast
Montgomery County just after the Civil War. Although modern
renovations have dramatically diminished the church’s ability to
recall its historic associations or architectural significance,
the burial ground retains integrity. It remains a highly
significant resource that represents the growth and development
of the African Ameriqan rural village of Good Hope. This
community flourished during the late 19th and early 20th
centuries and the church and cemetery were the focal point of

- community life.




. Survey NOM;26~ 2\
o MARYLAND INVENTORY OF  maci no.
Maryland Historical Trust " HISTORIC pRo;':ERngs e
State Historic Sites Inventory Form POE  _yes _no

1. Name {indicate preferred name)

historic. . Good Hope Methodist Episcopal Church and Cemetery
. - tUnited,
and/or common Good Hope Union ‘{ Methoglst Church and Cemetery
2. Location
14655
street & number '1'4?2'2' Good Hope Road " ___ not for publication
city, town Silver Spring ___ vicinity of congressional district S B
state MD county Montgomery
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
district- public occupied - agriculture ——— Mmuseum
3 building(s) X private —___unoccupied —_ commercial — park
. Structure __ both — work in progress ——— educational private residence
____ site Public Acquisition Accessibie - entertainment 1 religious
~~.__ object ____inprocess ¥. yes: restricted ——— government - Scientific
— being considered —_yes: unrestricted _ industrial __transportation
Y not applicable __ no ____ military ___other:

4. “owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

Good Hope Unionyﬁégﬁgdist Church (Rev. Burton Mack)
A

name

14622 Good Hope Road

street & number telephone no.:

city, town Silver Spring state and zip code MD 20904

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Montgomery County Courthouse liber 4145
street & number 51 Monroe Street folio 489

cify, town Rockville state MD

6. Representation in Existing nmistorical surveys

title N/A -

date . federal ___state __ county ___ local
P

.epository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description Survey No. 4.0

Condition Check one ‘%ck one

excellent _ deteriorated ____ unaltered original site
X good ____ruins X_ altered ____moved date of move
___fair ___ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

The Good Hope church and cemetery site is located on a plateau
that has a gentle slope to the southwest. The church faces northwest
toward Good Hope Road and is a most prominent feature on the site.
The cemetery has an irregular layout that surrounds most of the
church’s rear (southeast) and west elevation with plots that have a
variety of historic and non-historic gravemarkers generally dating
from the 1880s to the 1980s.

Good Hope church was built in 1913 as a wood frame vernacular
Cothic Revival building. Although the building has been heavily
altered and has had several recent additions, evidence of its origi-
nal picturesque design can be seen in its steeply pitched roof,
pointed style stained glass windows and belvedere. The building has
an irregular plan and has been completely altered by an exterior ren-
ovation characterized by a series of brick panels laid between each
of the window and door openings. These changes sheath the 1913
chapel and parish house ell. The gable end principal facade of the
building has been been renovated with the addition of a brick projec-
tion that has panels of inset colored glass to give the building a
modern ecclesiastical appearance. A new one-story shed roof addition
has extended the rear of the church. The church no longer retains
exterior architectural or historic integrity.

The cemetery, laid out behind and beside the church and a modern
parking lot (on the east side of the building), has a meadow-like
appearance with several large oak trees providing shade near clusters
of grave markers to the south and west side of the church. A group
of markers are also located within overgrown wooded sites on the
southwest and southeast corners of the lot. There are approximately
100 grave markers in the cemetery. The typical plot has a modest
roundheaded or rectangular stone with an inscription memorializing
the deceased. Yet, the variety of markers and stones in the ceme-
tery, some of which feature funerary folk art, give the site strong
associations with the struggle to establish and maintain Good Hope as
an African-American community between 1872 and 1944. The following
descriptions provide a cross section of the 40 or more historic
gravestones on the site.

(Continued)
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Continuation Sheet :
M-28/31 Good Hope Union United Methodist Church and Cemetery

Section 7: DESCRIPTION ' ‘
Page 7.1

The gravestone of Mary M. Adams is interesting because she not
only was one of the original- settlers in the community, but it
reflects an attempt to create a permanent memorial despite financial
hardship. The headstone is located in the southwest sector of the
site in a wooded area and is not a cut stone but rather a marble
table top from a piece of furniture. The inscription reads:

Mary M. Adams

Parted This Life

Novem. 22, 1921

Bond June 11, 1864, Age 67
In That City

Those Ho Left

Her Years Ago

Rembance Offered

. Lee to his Beloved
Mother-In-
Law

There are errors in spelling born, who, and remembrance offered
and the letters n in bond (born), June, and In are all inscribed

backwards. It appears that “Lee” inscribed this tribute with a sharp
nail or some other instrument.

Moving back toward the meadow-like cemetery area is an old stone
representative of the late nineteenth century markers at the site

that has a small foot stone with the initials G. S. and a gentle
rounded head with the inscription:

In Memory Of
+
- George Smith
Died
February 20, 1882
May he rest in peace

(Continued)




Continuation Sheet
M-28/31 Good Hope Union United Methodist Church

Section 7: DESCRIPTION
Page 7.2

and Cemetery

There is also approximately six uniformly designed simple white
marble stones that are the markers of World War II veterans. Each .
stone has a rounded head and a cross inscribed at the center of the
top. This example was inscribed:

Ross A. Washington

TSGT _
U. S. Army .
Feb. 2, 1917 '

Oct. 11, 1984

There are several areas on the west side of church in the open
meadow where there are groups of stones that are organized by family
dating from the late nineteenth century to recent times. The Steward
family plot has two impressive stones for the matriarch and patriarch
that read:

Mother Maria Isabella
Wife of Wm. H. Steward
May 18, 1869

April 18, 1928

At Rest

Father

William H. Steward
May 29, 1863

Dec. 26, 1939

At Rest

Both of these markers have a two step base that raises a pointed
granite headstone up for a more monumental appearance.

There also a series of more recent stones that appear to be the
work of one folk artist. These headstones are made out of concrete
and were scored and inscribed while the cement was wet. These grave-
markers have a cross scored in the cement and have simple rounded
tops. Some of the markers have the more elaborate design patterned
after a classical broken pediment. One of these broken pediment
style stones is inscribed as follows: o

(Cont inued)
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Continuation Sheet
M-28/31 Good Hope Union United Methodist Church and Cemetery

Section 7: DESCRIPTION T

Page 7.3 -

+
THE LATE

MARY F.

BOSWELL

BORN APR 1865
DIED JAN 10 1960

One of the most interesting stones on the site is located in the
southeastern sector behind the church parking lot. This gravemarker
is also concrete, but the decoration and inscription are enamel and
glass panel inserts set into the simple rounded concrete marker. The
top panel is blue enamel and has a star and a cross are into the
material with the expression inscribed underneuth:

The Way of the Cross
Leads Home

The second panel is glass with what appears to be reverse paint-
ing to marked the deceased’s name and birth and death dates:

Mildred Jackson
Born June 10, 1887
Died July 17, 1946




8. Significance survey No. M 28-31

Period Areas of Significance—-Check and justify below
—prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric _/J: community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion
14001499 __ archeology-historic —___conservation — law —_science
-1500-1599 _____ agriculture —__economics — literature — sculpture
— ' 1600-1699 ____ architecture —education — military —___social/
1700-1799 ____art —___engineering — music humanitarian
§ 1800-1899 ____ commerce —_expioration/settlement ____ philosophy —theater
I~ 1900- — communications —_ industry —politics/government ____transportation
—___invention . other (specify)
NvmvaNW\@m Yy
Specific dates Cc.1866-1944 Builder/Architect Unknown \
check: Applicable Criteria: &_A B _C _ D
and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A B _C _ D _E _F _ G
Level of Significance: _ national _ state __ local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a geﬁ\eral statement of history and
support. \

Summary: The Good Hope Church and Cemetery are important for
their historical associations with the black settlement of northeast
Montgomery County just after the Civil War. Although modern renova-
tions have dramatically diminished the church’s ability to recall its
historic associations or architectural significance, the burial
ground retains integrity. It remains a highly significant resource
that represents the growth and development of the African American
rural village of Good Hope. This community flourished during the
late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries and the church and
cemetery were the focal point of community life where settlers wor-
shiped, formed relationships and mourned their dead.

Good Hope was one a group of rural African-American settlements
that were established with the emancipation of slaves in the area.
Communities such as Good Hope, Brooke Grove, Mt. Zion, Holly Grove,
Fairview, Howard Chapel and Smithville were usually organized in a
linear fashion along a major farm road and were settled by families
who previously resided on nearby farms. Good Hope followed this pat-
tern and like many of its counterparts peaked as an organized commu-
nity from the 1890s to the 1920s before outmigration, white suburban
growth, and regional politics began to change or encroach on communi-
ty organization and the traditional lifeways developed in the late
nineteenth century.l

The heart of all of these communities was the church and its
cemetery. Here the inhabitants of a community would worship, social-
ize, gather news and information about other African American commu-
nities through the network of churches and circuit riding preachers.

P

(Continued)




Continuation Sheet

M-28/31 Good Hope Union United Methodist Church and Cemetery

Section 8: SIGNIFICANCE
Page 8.1

Good Hope was typical of rural African American communities in
Montgomery County in that its size averaged about 100 persons. Most
were employed as farm laborers and domestics in an economy that pro-
vided few economic opportunities for African-Americans before 1940.2

Many of the settlers who established this village as “hire out”
farm labor and domestics saved the money to build the Methodist
Episcopal church that became an institution serving Good Hope ‘as well
as Holly Grove and Smithville. Many of the pioneer families are
interred at the adjacent cemetery including Adams, Burton, Lee,
Pumphrey, Steward, and Wilson.3 All have burial markers in the ceme-
tery dating from the 1880s to the 1940s. The church and cemetery was
the community bonding agent throughout the community’s history and
the cemetery is particularly important resource because, unlike the
church, it retains a high degree of historic integrity.




9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No.M: 28-31

See Attached Sheet

10. Geographical Data

3 Acres

Acreage of nominated property
Quadrangle name Quadrangle scale

UTM References (Jo NOT complete UTM references

AL b Lo by Ll Ll bbby

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
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Verbal boundary description and justification

|
L]
L1 |

Ll lll

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/titie William Bushong

organization M-NCPPC date May, 1994

street & number 8787 Georgia Avenue telephone (301)495-4570
city or town Silver Spring state MD

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.
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Preservation Planning Data:
a) Geographic Organization: Piedmont
b) Chronological/Development Periods: Industrial/Urban

Dominance, 1870-1930

c) Historic Period Themes: Community Development
4d) Resource Type: Cemetery .
Endnotes

1 Everett L. Fly and La Barbara Wigfall Fly, Northeastern Montgomerv
County Black Oral Historv Studv (Montgomery County Department of
Public Housing and Community Development, 1983), 1-18.

2 Ibid. See also Richard K. Macmaster and Ray Eldon Heibert, A
Grateful Remembrance: The Storv of Montgomerv County, Marvland
(Rockville: Montgomery County Government and the Montgomery County
Historical Society, 1976), 304-306.

3 Everett L. Fly and LaBarbara Wigfall Fly, Northeastern Montaomerv
County Black Oral Historvy Studvy. (Rockville, MD: Montgomery County
Department of Housing and Community Development, 1983), 79-83.
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